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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible under Sections 150 (l), &l5lof the Companies ActNo.07 of 2007, to

ensure compliance with the requirements set out therein to prepare Financial Statements for eaclt

t-inancial year giving a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the

financial year and of the profit & loss of the Company for the financial year.

The Directors are also responsible, under Sectionl48, for ensuring that proper accounting records are

kept to enable for determination of financial position with reasonable accuracy, preparation of
Financial Statements and audit of such statements to be carried out readily and properly.

The Board accepts responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of the Financial Statements

presented. The Directors confirm that in preparing the Financial Statements, appropriate accounting
policies have been selected and applied consistently while reasonable and prudent judgments hare

been made so that the form and substance oftransactions are properly reflected.

They also confirm that the Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in accordance u ith

the Sri Lanka AccoLrnting Standards- SLFRS and Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 .

Further, the Finarrcial Statements provide the inforrnation required by the Companies Act.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on their knowledge of the Company, key operations and

specific inquiries, which adequate resources exist to support the Cornpany on a going concern basis

over the next year. These Financial Statements have been prepared on that basis.

-lhe Directors have taken reasonable measures to safeguard the assets of the Group and. in that

context, have instituted appropriate systems of internal control with a view to preventine and

detecting fiaud and other irregularities. As required by Section 56 (2) of the Companies Act. the

Board of Directors has authorised distribution of the dividend now proposed, being satisfied based r.n

information available to it that the Company would satisfy the solvency test after such distribution in
accordance with Section 57 of the Companies Act, and have sought in respect of the dir idend n..s
proposed, a certificate of solvency from the Auditors.

The Auciitor General u,ho was empowered to audit the Ceylon Fertilizer Co. Ltd. Under the pror isions

of Nineteenth amendment to the constitution of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka. uas

provided with every opportunity to Lrndertake the inspections they considered appropriate to enable

them to forrn their opinion on the Financial Statements.

Compliance Report

. ::e Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all statutory payments relatins tt)

=:.Elorees and the Government tlrat were due in respect of the Cornpany as at the Balance Sheet date
-,-, e been paid or where relevant, provided for.

-.. '.i:atlr Perera

1'tlre []oard
Fertilizer Co Ltd.

-
E

Perera

27th 2023



CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED

Chairman,s and Financial Manager,s Responsibility

The Financial Statements of ceylor-r Fertilizer co. Ltd. As at 31st lVlarch

ancl presented in compliance witir the re.quirement of th:j:l!lll*;
o Sri Lanka Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of chartered

. Compafiies Act No' 07 of 2007;'

. code of Best Practice on corporate Governance issued by General Treasury

we confirm that the significant accounting policies ,t:9 
1n 

the preparatt:l_"1i1'

ffi;.;;;';;';;ffir" "'a are cons"isientlv appli:d' 
,u', 

**il!:, :l^i:
;ffiffii'i;#|,|1l i,^1*ir.r.ril"o Accounting Standards have been adopted

. r -l ^ L:

;:lffi fi ,: in"' rj r"i o;; ;.;;iln s policies a"nd e stimates that involved a hish
-,- -:u^^ ^^A

iudgment and comPlexitY were

Auditors.

dislussed with the Audit Committee and t'-:

We have also taken proper and suffrcient care in installing systems of internal col

accounting records, to safeguard assets, and to prevent and detect frauds "t ll-t]].
ii.**;-:1.;. 

"il;J.;; "b;;, reviewed, evaluated and updated on an

Reasonable assurances that the established policies and procedures of the

il#ffi:;.hr,i}"tlowed were provided bv periodic audits conducted bv

internal auditors. However, there are inherent limitations tl"t,,tTlll^::.::
weighing the assurances provided by any system of internal controls and accounting'

TheAuditCommitteeoftheCompanymeetsperiodically-withthelntemalAuditorsandthe
lndependentauditors-to,.uie*'ttreeffectiueness":1ry*t]:'fli,r::"1'::u:;""[1'H
il["#il"jffi, ffi financial reporting issues. The Independent Auditors and the Interml

Auditors have fuil and free u"r..i to thJAudit committee to discuss any matter of substance-

T.he F-inancial Statements were audited by the Auditor General to the Democratic socialite

Republic of Sri Lanka

Dr.B.K.Jagath Perera

Chairman

Act. Manager (Finance)
November 27th 2023

ii"#trc;;;;i

-:+t----,"
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPAN}' LIMITED
STATEN'IENI' OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTIIE,R COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Expressed rr.trr larkarr Rilpeed

FOR TIIE YEAR I,NDED 3I MARCH Note 2023 2022

Revenue

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Other Operating Income

Administrative Expenses

Promotional Expenses

Profit from Operation

Finance Income

Finance Cost

Profit Before Taxation

Income Ta.r Expcnses

Profit for the Year

Othcr Comprehensive Income

Acturial Gain/Loss on Obligation

Deferred Tax Benefits / (Expenses) on Acturial Gain{Loss on Obligation

Deferred Tar Benefits / (Expenses) on Revaluation Surplus

Total Other Comprchensive Income

Total Comprchensive Incomc for the Ycar

536,1t2,27t 1,209,392,948

(324,841,005) (868,945,417)

211,271,266 340,447,531

52,65r,785 1 04,584.039

(550,252,130) (533,615,098)

(8,992,489) ( 15 I ,485)

(295,321,568) (88,735,013)

626,584,214 181,995,01 5

(218,301,976) (27.911,3e3)

I12,960,670 65,348,609

7,840,166 16,227,311

120,800,836 81,575,919

5

6

7

8

8

(61,471,108) 941,065

(61,471,108) 941,065

59,329,728 82,516,985

Basic Earnings Per Sharc (El'S)

Dividends Pcr Share (DPS)

l0.l

10.2

7.40

0.36

1.62

0.21

Note -During the fiscal yeat 2022-23, the company served as a distributor for the Government's Subsidy

Ferlilizer Distribution Program. Notably, our revenue reflects a significant decrease compared to the prior year,

as the Government covered only the associated distribution expenses. This decline is intrinsic to our role as a

distributor in a government-led subsidy initiative.
It is irnporlant to contextualize this decrease in revenue within the specific frameu,ork of our participation in

:he Subsidy Ferlilizer Distribution Program during the reporting period.

Figures in brackets indicatc deductions.

\ ires to thc Financial Statenents on Pages 5 to 24 form an intcgral part of lhese Financial Statements.

3

4
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( E\ r.oN I.'Eti,'r'il.tzr.R ( ol\tp.\N\' 1_tNil't'[.D
S'1 .{'fl'l}lE\'l'OF FlNAN(lIAl. POSl'l'lo\ rz:rprc.*car,,.siir-ratrarrpccsl

FOII I'IIE YEATI ENDED ]I NIARCH Note 2023 2022

ASSI,]'tS
\on-(lurrent Assets
Property. Plant atld E.quipment
Capital Work-in-Progress

Intangible Assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

I nventories

J'rade and Other Receivables

F.mployees I-oans and Advances

lnvestnrents in Government Securities
lnvcstrnents in Fixed Deposits
Cash and Cash Equrvalcnts
'l'otal Current Assets

Total Assets

[]QtrtT] AND LIABILI't'tES
l-qu ity
Stated (iaprtal

Ilevaluation Rescrve

Rctained Iiarnings
Total l)quity

Non-Currcnt Liabilities
Rctirement Benellts Obligation
[)el'erred ]'axation
Interest Bearing Borrowings
'l'otal Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
'l rade and Other Payables

Interest Bearing Bonowings
Deposits and Advances Received
lnconre'fax Payables

Acerued F.rpertscs and Pror rsions
'l otal Current Liabilities
'l'otal [,)quity and Liabilities
\ct .\ssel Value Per Share

il
l2
IJ

2,599.87-s.848 2.632.653.373
676.729 676.729
396,479 4.978,638

2,600,949,056 2,638,J08,740

281,493,596
24,t31,6t5,4t2

41,s67,777
958,141,229

2,925,863,8 l r

499, I 85.028
28,837,866,85J 32,2 1J,060,606
3l,,1J8,815,909 J,r,85l,169,317

502,456.080 502,456,080

2.2-s6.835,668 2,3t8,306,775

3,660, 120,4 t5 3,,s69,46i,352
(t,119,112,163 (>,390,226,207

79,868,769 71,9 1 4,1 53

I 15,263,533 100,894,788

22,206,902,897 t3,451,229,7t2
22,402,035,199 73,626,039,653

t4
l5
l6
l7
l8
l9

94,985,1 8 I

28,453,931.827
35,470,521

807,101,718

2,523,866,395
297,704,965

20

2t

1a

23

25

24

25

26

27

28

2,3t5,977,743
209,04t,249

20,485,353

47.097.424

2,963.540,58 l

I 1,768,8,s4.03-s

17,949.5t4
21,0 t9.056

24,766.778 63.741.301
2,617

15,909

127.76 127.18

J4,8s

Statenrcnts ol the Cionrpanl'conrpll rvith the requircmcrrts ol'the ('ontpanrcs Act No.07

The Board olDirectors is Responsible for Preparation and Presentation ofthese Financial Statements

Approvcd and Signed for and on behalfofthe Board,

Chairman

Dr.e 27.1 1.202J

Colombo,

Fgures in brackets indicate deductions.

\ra ao the Financial Statements on Pages 5 to 2,1 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,



CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIN{ITED

STATEN{ENT OF CIIANGES IN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Stated
Capital

Balance as at 0l APril 2021

Prior Year Adjustments

Dividend Paid

Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive lncome

Ilalance as at 3l l\{arch 2022

Prior Year Adjustments

Dividend Paid

Profit for the Year

Other CorrtPrchensive Income

Balancc as at 3l N{arch 2023 5()2.15(,., '

Figures in brackcts indicate deductions'

Notestothe}-inlncialStatenrentsonPages5to24fornlanintegralpartoftheseFinancialStlta

502,456.080 ':



" : i iTII-IZT-R CO}IPANY LIMITED.: \T 1lF C\Sll FLO\\'S

Page 4

(Estpressed in Sri Lankan Rupees)

" . : 'r i rR E\DED 3l IIARCII 2023 2022
Note

- : : ^: frr,m Operating Activities

- -- - -r\.:lirril

. : -,:-:i:is for;

:'::,:.' :Or thr' \'Caf

.-- "- ::,'
: ,:--:.!.'S

- -: .1. l_r ,t itntL-nts

:'-' :: L,,ss Before \\'orking Capital Changcs

- :: Receivablcs

. - . .:it: and Advanccs

" . .:: I)arables

i '.'1\ anCes Reccivcd
-- ....rnrl Prorisions

. - : ,, ir,rnr Operations

-. - F i ,l fronr / (used in) Operating Activitics

. ' : .i r frrrJlr Investing Actiyities
' I".lcn). Plant and Equipnrcnt

, - i: , \\'ith Interest I{e-inr,cslmcnt) in -l-r'casurl,Bjlls / Fixcd l)cposits
. ,.r i\ct o1'-l-axes)

" .- i rr fronr / (used in) Inyesting Activitics

,.: ir,,m Financing Activities

- .:-thr-\'car

' :- ::,,rr ings During lhc Ycar

, - : rr from / (uscd in) Financing Activities

-.i in f':rsh :lnd Cash Equivalents During thc Year

' i::lirelc'nts at Beginning olthc Year

.- -,.i. [-quirelents at ljnd of the Ycar

. '. -:rir:( Litriuctions.

\:.r:!nr!nt\ rrn I'it,tcs 5 to 2J lirrnr rn intcgral l)arl ofthese I.'inancial Stntcmcnts.

(Note 19)

112,960,670

40,772,701

4,582,159

19,005,034

(626,584,214)

218,301,976

(ls,143,772)

65,348,609

4 r ,088,023

4,582,159

3,418,199

( 181,995,0r 5)

27 ,911,393
(8,871,27 4)

(246,105,446) (48,517,906)

(186,508,415)

4,322,316,416

(6,097,256)

(647,s62,838)

22,069

(38,974,s23)

293,735,753

(2,78 r ,904,506)

3,700,755

(2,807,379,436)

(4,1 09,409)

( r 4,460,682)

(r 3,050,4 l 8)

(218,301,976)

3,197,090,007 (5,358,935,431)

(9,23s,432)

(27,911,393)

(4,345,255)

2,965,737,613 (5,400,427,511)

(7,99s,177) (7,7s|,291)
(553,036,928) (204,498,368)

61s,914,156 18 1,995.0 I 5

54,882,051 (30,254,644\

13,574,325,625 8.39r"084,309

( 1 5,000,000) (29.397 ,983)
############# (2.828,929,633)

(2,819,139,600) 5,532,756,693

201,480,064

297,704,96s

102,074,538

195,630,426

499, I 85,029 297,704,965
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IIJ(I\ FER,TILIZER COMPANY LTD
[fSTOTHf FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SIG\IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GE\ERAL POLICIES

Reporting entity

zer Company is a fully government owned, ISO 9001 :2008 Certified Company coming under purview

1 of Agriculture operating for more than 50 years in Sri Lanka. Ceylon Fertilizer Company is engaged
r of chemical fertilizer, producing quality fertilizer mixture and marketing, distributing through island
of u'arehouses and thereby catering to the fertilizer needs of Sri Lankan Farmers.

izer Corporation was converted to Ceylon fertilizer Company Ltd in terms of the transformation of
Corporations and Government owned business undertaking into limited liability companies under the
r 987.

..-:.rrn took legal effect from l5th September 1992. The Ceylon Fertilizer Company Ltd presentll
., . R.eSistered Public Company in Sri Lanka under the Companies Act No. 1 of 2001 . The objectir e oi the

" .'. t.i Company Ltd is to ensure carrying out the successful business undertaken br its predecess..r'
' :1 z.'r Corporation which was established under the provisions of the State Industrial Companies .{c:

- Ll \

: rr\(l\L\E{R
-.r:-. S tlnancial reporling period ends on 3lst March.

$r.rr -: -:t I.rl rtf the Company

: -'r:-'. i: tully owned by the Sri l,anka Treasury and the issued share capital is 50,245,608 ordinarl
- --:33s l0 each.

\ \I 3f R OF E}IPLOYEES
, - - - ::: --i enrployees of the Company as at 3l March 2023 was 327 (2021- 362)

- I -. I-)F {L THORIZATION FOR ISSUE IS 3I,t March 2023.

-i:1r \r'ture and Address of the registered office
-' : - ':rlitr company incorporated in Sri Lanka with full ownership vested with the Secretary to the

.. _ 
a :lnce. The Head offlce is situated at Lakpohora Swarna Jayanthi Mawatha. Hunupitiya, Wattala.

: .- r : :: i {r'tir ities and Nature of operation

. -:.-. .':ll successfully andcontinuouslyprovidefertilizertothenation throughisislanduidedistribution

---:- r- :r'Ihe flrst State Organization to produce and distribute organic pellet fertilizer to the local

--k 
-^-d-..^I
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2023

Statement of ComPliance

1.8 Going Concern

The Management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that it has th<

resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthefinore, the management is not aware of an1

material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going concem

Therefore, the financial statement ofthe company continues to be prepared on a going concern basis'

1.9 Taxation

provision for taxation has been made on the basis of profit for

accordance with the lnland Revenue Act No 10 0f 20 16 and the new
the year as adjusted for taxation purposes in

lnland Revenue Act No 24 of 20 17.

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation
(a) Statement of ComPliance

The financial statements comprise the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income. statemenl

of changes in equity, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except where appropriate disclosures are ntade

with regard to fair value under relevant notes.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accountitrg

Standards (SLFRSs). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. as

modified by the revaluation of land and buildings. The preparation of financial statements, in contbrmity with

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs), requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. lt also

requires management-to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies'

The areas involving a higher degree of luagment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2'26'

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the

following items in the statement of financial position:

o liability of defined benefit obligation is recognized as the present value of the defined benefrt

obligation
o Freehold land and buildings are measured at cost at the time of acqujsition and subsequently at

revalued amounts, which are the fair values at the date of revaluation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except

for the land, buildings, investment properties and financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive

Income presentation and Functional Currency The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees.

the Companies functional and presentation currency, which is the primary economic environment in which the

Company operates.

Each material class of similar items is presented cumulatively in the Financial Statements. ltems of dissirnilar

nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted by the SriLanka Accounting

Standard- SLFRSs on'Presentation of Financial Statements'. The significant accounting policies are discusseci

with relevant individual notes.

\N^ra. fn thp Finqnniql Sfctem{'nfs C0nfinued
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CfI'LO\ FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
\OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2023

Com paratir e information
Crrr-nparati\e information including quantitative, narrative and descriptive information is disclosed in respect of the
prerious period for all amounts reported in the financial statements in order to enhance the understanding of the
financial staternents of the current period and to improve the inter-period comparability.

The presentation and classification of the Financial Statements of the previous years have been amended, where
reler.ant for better presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements and in reporting the Public Sector Accounting Standards volumes I, II and III issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

It is also disclosed that when the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements have been
amended. comparative amounts have also been reclassified to conform with the current in order to provide a better
presentation. Hence Fixed Assets, Current Assets and Equity classification errors have been corrected as per
SLPSAS and Treasury guide lines.

The presentation and classification of the Financial Statements of the previous years have been amended, where
relerant tbr better presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year.

Sum mary of Significant Accounting Policies

Summary of significant accounting policies have been disclosed along with the relevant individual notes in the
subsequent pages. Those accounting policies presented with each note have been applied consistently by the company.
Other significant accounting policies not covered with individual notes. Following accounting policies which have been
applied consistently by company, is considered to be significant but are not covered in any other sections.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in Statement of Financial Position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:
Y expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
i' nela primarily for the purpose of trading
t' expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
\' cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
:tter the reporting period All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabilirf is considered as current when:
i- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
f it is neld primarily for the purpose of trading
\- it is due to be settled within twelvemonths after the reporting period, or
\-' there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Defened tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities accordingly

Changes in Accounting Policies
The chanses in accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the
tlnancial statements. unless otherwise indicated.

The presentation and classification of the financial statements of the previous year have been amended. uhere
relerant. for bener presentation and to be comparable with those of the current year.
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2023

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial

statements and in reporting the Accounting Standards as per SLAS issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

ofSri Lanka. .
It is also disclosed that when the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements have been amended

to provide a better presentation.
The cunent year financial statement

2.3 Foreign Currency Translation
2.3.1 Functional and Presentation Currency

Transaction and balances included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currencl

of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The financial statements are presented in Sri

Lanka Rupees (LKR), which is the company's presentation currency.

2.3.2 Transadtions and Balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at

the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in the statement of compreherrsire

income.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Financial Statements the company require the management to make judgments. eslimates

and assumptions, Notes to the Financial Statements rvhich ma1 affect the amounts of income. erpenditure.

assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. at the end of the reporting period. Uncertaintl about

these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carnins
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. In the process of applying the companl's accounting

policies, management has made various judgments. Those which management has assessed to hare the most

significant effect on the amounts recognized in.the Consolidated Financial Statements have been discussed in

the individual notes of the related financial statement line items.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the repofiing date.

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are also described in the individual notes to the Financial Statements. The

company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were

prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to

rruik.t changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control ofthe Group. Such changes are reflected in

the assumptions when they occur.

ASSETS AND BASIS OF THEIR VALUATION2.4

2.4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Recognition and Measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or at their fair value less accumulated

depreciation or impairment losses.

The ownership of premises where the Company head office is located was vested with the Companl on

a Cabinet decision as a presidential directive was issued in the year 2009. However, although the deeds

were received, the process of registering the ownership of the premises with the Land Commissioner of
the Kelaniya and wattala divisional secretariats is currently under process. The registration of the

kelaniya divisional secretariat deed registration is.done but no sooner the registration of the wattala

secretariat is done the Company will be claiming the compensation value of rupees 12.6 Million fronr

the Road Development Authority for acquiring 28 perch of land for expansion of the transpofi systenr

ofthe country.

Nnfps tn thp Finnnciql Stctpmenfs Continued
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CE\ LO\ FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
\OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The Ceylon Fertilizer Company considers the minimum value of fixed assets as rupees 5,000, all items
of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or
impairment losses. Significant components of an asset are identified and depreciated separately. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity
derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own useful life and depreciation.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost including any costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the Company's management.

All the item of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at.cost. Where items of properfy,
plant and equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class ofsuch assets is revalued. Revaluations
are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amounts do not differ materially from
their fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increases arising on the revaluation of such Assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation.

Decrease for the same asset previously recognized in the income statement, in which case the increase

is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the
Carrying amount arising on a revaluation of Assets are recognized in the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property's revaluation reserve relating to a Previous
revaluation of the same Assets.

Upon disposal, any related revaluation reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
Earnings and is not taken into, account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The details of
revaluation of Assets are disclosed in note ll to the financial statements

2.1.2 All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the income statement as incurred.

Properry, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost including any costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Company's management.

All the item of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Where items of property, plant and

equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is revalued. Revaluations are made with
sutficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amounts do not differ materially from their fair values at the

reporting date.

Anr revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such Assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation.

Decrease for the same asset previously recognized in the income statement, in which case the increase is
Credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the
Carrying amount arising on a revaluation of Assets are recognized in the income statement to
The ertent that it exceeds the balance, ifany, held in the property's revaluation reserve relating to a

Prer ious revaluation of the same Assets.

L pon disposal. any related revaluation reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
Earnings and is not taken into account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The details ofrevaluation
Of Assets are disclosed in note ll to the financial statements

Ilepreciation
Items of propertv, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or, in respect of
xlf-constn-rcted assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD

;:ffiil;,;; ;i;ffi; straight- line basis over their estimaied useful lives. Depreciation is recognized in
,r :-- --^^f--l l:.,^^..-l^-- :r i"

profit or loss. Leased assets arJdepreciated overthe shorter ofthe lease term and their useful lives unless it is

i;;;;;ly;;nuin rrru, tt" Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term' Land is not depreciated'

Land is not depreciated; depreciation on other assets is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their

cost or revalued amount over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

40 Years

10 Years

05 -10 Years

05 Years

03 Years

03 Years

03 Years

05 Years

03 Years

03 Years

05 Years

03 Years

An asset,s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrf ing

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount'

Depreciation of an assetbegins when it is available for use whereas depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier

ofthe date that the asset is c"lassified as held for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized' :

An item of properfy, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or disposal.'The gain/loss on d"e-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is

included in profit or loss in the year the asset is flerecognized'

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual

appropriate.

values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if

De-recognition
if,. .ur,.!lng amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when

No future economic benefits are expecied tom its ut. oi dirpotal. The gain or loss arising from the

De recognition of an it., orprop.rty, plant and equipment ii included in profit or loss when item is de

Recognized.

Measurement of fair values

when measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as

possible. Fair values uri 
"utigorired 

into different levels in a hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows'

. Level I - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities'

. Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or

Liability, either directly or indirectly'

. Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

Inputs)

Further information about assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the respective notes to the

consolidated fi nancial statements.

Buildings

Container Office

Plant and MachinerY

Motor Vehicles

Bicycles

Office Furniture

Office Equipment

Workshop Tools

Lab Equipment

Other Equipment

Canteen EquiPment

Computer Accessories

f
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Revaluation Model
'Ihe Group applies Revaluation Model for the entire class of land and buildings in the statement of financial
position. .Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the end of each reporting period. If the fair
values of land and buildings does not change other than by an insignificant amount at each reporting period the
Group will revalue such land and buildings every 3 years

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for
the same asset previously' recognized in the income statement, in which case the increase is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising
on a revaluation of land and buildings are recognized in the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
balance. if an1 . held in the property's revaluation reserve relatingto aprevious revaluation of the same land and
Buildingi. Upon disposal. an1' related revaluation reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
earnines and is not taken into account in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. The details of revaluation of
land and buildines are disclosed in note xxx to the financial statements.

Ca pital \\'ork-in-Progress

Capinl uork-in-progress represents the accumulated cost of materials and other costs directly related to the
conslruction of an asset. Capital in progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the time it is
subsrantiallr completed and ready for its intended use.

2.{.3 lntangibleAssets
.{cquired computer software and operatirlg systems are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software and systems. Intangible assets acquired are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives, as
lblloss:

Computer Software 05 Years

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmers' are recognized as an expense as incurred.

2.1.1 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
At each end of repofting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its properry, plant and equipment
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company determines the cash-generating unit and estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
offuture cash flows have not been adjusted.

lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.5 Financial Assets

2.5.1 The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and the Company
classifies its financial assets as follows:

a) Held-to- Maturity Investment
b) Loans and receivables



Page I 2

CEYLON FERTILTZER COMPANY LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

I U"tO-to- Maturity lnvestment ( HTM)
HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fireo

maturity other than loans and receivables. lnvestments are classified as HTM if the Company has the

po.iilrJ intention and ability to hold them until maturity' HTM investments are included in current assets'

b) lolrr rna receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for maturities

greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-current assels

The Company,s loans and receivables comprise iubsidy receivables, trade and other receivables:

,.pr..t,urJ glr.*r.n, securities, fixed deposits, prepayments, advances, and deposits' loans tt-t

employees aid cash and cash equivalents in end ofthe reporting period.

2.5.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are recognized on the date on which the Company originates

the transaction. Other financial assets are recognized on the trade-date on which the Company becomes.a partl

to the contractual provisions of the financial Instrument. A financial asset is measured initially at fair value

plus, in the case ofassets not at fair value through profit or loss. directly attributable transaction costs'

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows fiom the financial assets have expireci tlr

have been transferred and the Company has iransferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets.

2.5.3 SubsequentMeasurement
a) Held-to- Maturity lnvestment ( HTM)

HTM investments are measured subsequently' at amortized cost using the effective interest method'

nmo.tir.J 
"ost 

is computed taking into'account of discount or premium on acquisition and transaction

costs.

b) Loans and receivables
Subsequenttoinitialrecognition'loansandreceivablesaremeasured
interest method, less provision for impairment'

2,5,4 Impairment of Financial Assets

,

at amortized cost using the eft'ective

Assets carried at amortized cost

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period uhether there is objective evidence that a fina'ncial

asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred onll if there is objective

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a

,loss event,) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flo$s of the financiai

asset that can be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments canied at amortized cost, the amount of the loss is

measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash

flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced and the amount of the loss is

recognized in the statement of comprehensive income'

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss. decreases and the decrease can be relate'j

objectively to an event occurring after the i*pui.*.nt was recognized, the reversal of the previously recognized

impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income'

lnventories
lnventories (Direct and Mixed Fertilizers) are stated at cost minus subsidy. cost is determined using the first-in'

first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of mixed fertilizer comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs

and related production overheads. Inventories purchased locally are stated at castanet realized whicherer i'

2.6

ffi\
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lower. Net realizable value is the subsidized value in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses.
Consumables and packing material are stated at cost or net realized whichever is lower.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due flom customers for sale of goods in the ordinary course of business.
Collection is expected in the normal operating cycle of the business and they are classified as current assets.
Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value, which is the invoice value and subsequently measured at
the original invoice value Iess provision for impairment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that trade
receivables is impaired. Objective evidences of impairment for trade receivables could include the Company's
past experience of collecting payments. an increase in the number of delayed payments past the maximum credit
period of 90 days. Trade receivables are impaired and impairment losses are incurred, only if there is objective
evidence of impairment. All trade receivables are assessed individually for impairment.

The model and basis used to assess the trade receivables for impairment is as follows:

Individual Evaluation Model: Following types of trade receivables are reviewed individually to measure the

impairment loss.

Multi Purpose Co-operative Societies

Agrarian Service Centers

Authorized Dealers

Government Institutions and Departments

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entify and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a

financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Transaction cost in relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with through the Income
Statement. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under SLFRS 15. Refer
to the accounting policies in section xxxx, Revenue from contracts with customers. ln order for a financial
asset (excluding equity instruments) to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes ofsubsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

2.8.

2.9

2.9.1
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Financial assetsdesignatedatfairvaluethroughOClwithnorecyclingofcumulativesain.::; --:.-r -

Derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

a

2.9,2 Financial Assets ql Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at anron.z.: -

both of the following conditions are met;
The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets ::: . --.'
collect contractual cash flows and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flous that ::: , ,

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) nr-:- - '-
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is der.';. -- ,-
modified or impaired. The Group's financial assets at amorlized cost include trade receivables. anrc--i: -,:
from related companies and fixed deposits.

2.9.3 Financiul Assets st Fsir Value through OCI (Deb Instruments)
The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditionS,tr: ^ :i
l. The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding tr. ; ,-

2.9.4

contractual cash flows and selling and

2. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ar:' , . ..

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding For debt instruments at t.t : . - -.
through OCI, interest income. foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or rerer:: , ,-.
recognize in the income statement and computed in the same manner as for financial assets l.rtel:-.-:- ,,1

amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon de recosn':'- --.
cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or loss. The Group currentl'. r ;: - I

own any financial asset that is classified under this category.

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through OCI (Equity Instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments r: :--..
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity unde: .rr.> -:l
Financial lnstruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is deternri:=: - ::
instrument-by instrument basis. Cains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
To profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in the income statement the right ol:: -.'::l
has been established, except when the Group beneflts fiom such proceeds as a recovery ofpart o;:-: - .1

of the financial asset, in which case. such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments designal.; '. '. :
value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment. The Group currently does n..: ,..'- ..--.

financial asset that is classified under this category.

2.9,5 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financialassetsatfairvaluethroughprofitorlossincludefinancialassetsheldfortrading.tlnan...,.:..
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets::t::::: - 

.

required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they er. ;.-- ---:

for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flouS ir;. :-: -

solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measure data fair value through prrri:. . - :.
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be c.".. :- ::
amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments ma) be desr5:r:.: . -, -

value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or signiticantlr :;:--:. :-
accounting mismatch. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the.:".=--.-:
financial position at fair value with net change in fair value recognized in the income staten:3,-.: I :.---
on listed equity investments are also recognized as other income in the income statement rih::::: : ;-:
Payment has been established. The Group curently does not own any financial asset that is cl:ss::.: --:.-
this category.

2.9.6 Business Model Assessment
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The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at

a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a

parlicular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;
How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management the risks that
affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and

how those risks are managed:
How managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
The frequencr'. l'olume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
Erpectations about future sales actiril . Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do
not qualili tbr de recognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and u'hose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL. Assessment u'hether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest.
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated u'ith the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers: Contingent events that
would change the amount or timing of cash flows; Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate.

including variable-rate features; Prepayment and extension features; and Terms that limits the Group's
claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).A prepayment feature is consistent
with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset

acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual paramount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is

treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
Recognition.

2.9.1 lmpairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at

fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an

approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows ffom
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms .For trade
receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the

Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date.
The Croup has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience. adjusted
for forward looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the confractual cash

flows.

2.9.8 De recognition of Financial Assets

I

a
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a

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a parl of a financial asset or part of a Group of si::-. :- ' - -- -

assets) is primarily de recognized (i.e., removed from the Group's Consolidated statenleri ' ----- - -

position) when: The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an rr: i::
pay ithe received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pas: l--i---
arrangemen| and either

' (a) The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, or
(b) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards olthe :...
has transferred control ofthe asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows liom an asset or has entered in:.- . :.'--
through arrangement, it evaluates iI, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards oirr\i-;-'- :
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the ;..=: - -

transferred control ofthe asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the e\i3:: ' -'

continuing involvement. ln that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transttr"r:,1 ::::
And the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that th; .-r- --
has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred ,..=' :

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum an'lc',-:

consideration that the Group could be required to repay. On de-recognition of a financial aSS;i. l-;
difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the porlion ,- - -.
asset transferred), and the sum of;
(l) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and.

(ii) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized another comprehensive income is recosn.-.: -

profit or loss

2.9.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnthestatementofcaslrflows.cashandcaShequivalentsinc1udescashinhand,depositsheldatc"
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.10 Stated Capital

2.tt

Ordinary shares issued to the Government of Sri Lanka are classified as equity.

Financial Liabilities
Disclosure of Contingent Liabilities

Provisions for operating expenses are recognized when the Company has a present legal or corsll--.i 
" 

r'

obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources .i r.
required from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation. !.:..:
the most reliable evidence available at the reporling date, including the risks and un;:::: -::'
associated with the present obligation.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the financial statement, unl.r, the possib'. :.' ."'
outflow of resources is remote.

a) The Company had taken a decision in the year 2016 to rent out Polgahawela stores prentises .': :-. :-
Lanka Railways Department, and as at the end of the accounting year a sum of rupees :.-:-::':r .

payable. However, this payable amount could not be taken in to the books of accounts of th: t - -:.-
as no valid agreement has been reached between the two parties.

b) Similarly, the Company had taken a decision in the year 2010 to rent out Hingurakgodo Sie-r:! r-:- :::
of the Sri Lanka Railways Department and as at the end of the accounting year a sum rri t--:;<: -:-: : i
is payable. However, this payable amount could not be taken in to the books of srii----: .- --;
Company as no valid agreement has been reached between the two parties.

c) The Company had also rented out Stores premises of the Sri Lanka Mahauele Authrri'::. I---:.::-
2015 and a sum of rupees 1,630,000 is payable for renting out the Sooriyau'eua store. T: : :- --'

\nfos fn fhe Finqnoial Sfrtemenfs Continued
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too could not be taken in to the books of accounts of the company as no valid rent / lease agreement has
been reached between the two parties.

d) Similarly, the Company had also rented out the Kirologama stores premises of the Sri Lanka Mahawele
.Authority in the year 2012 and a sum of rupees 900,000 is payable for renting out the stores. This
amount too could not be taken in to the books of accounts of the company as no valid rent / lease
agreement has been reached between the two parties.

Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it's a

derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses. including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other
financial Iiabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
Erpense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de
recognitions also recognized in profit or loss.

2.1l.l Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchanger
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2,11.2 Offsetting of Financial lnstruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reporled in the consolidated statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognize
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.11.3 Amortized Cost Measurement
The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is

measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity
amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

2.12 Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
in the normal operating cycle of the business.

goods or services that have been acquired in'the
other payables are classified as current liabilities as

'lrade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value, which is the transaction price and
subsequently measured at the original invoice value as they are expected to be paid rrithin a shon period.
such that the time value of money is not significant.

2.13 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequentlr
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.14 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in s'hich ther are
incurred.

2.15 Government Grants
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance thar dre
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.
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Fertilizer subsidies relating to import costs are reco$i'ed in the..statement,of comPrehensive i',
fnr

them with the costs that tiey are intended to compensate. Fertilizer subsidies to compensate tor
r -: i-. -^^^:.,^r-r^ .,,r.-.- thorp ic , reecnnahle assurance that theffi;a; #;;;;;g;;J"; ,ubridy receivabie where rhere is a reasonable assurance that

be receiv.ed.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in noncurrent liabilities as ,*

government grant;;d are"recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight- line basr

the expected lives ofthe related assets'

2.16 Current and Deferred Tax
Thetaxexpensefortheperiodcomprisescurrentanddeferredtax.Taxisrecognizedinthesraretn
comprehensive income staiement, .*."pt1o the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comFtb

income. ln this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income'

Thecur.rentincometaxchargeiscalculatedonthebasisofthetaxlawsenactedatthereportingptrr
applicablefortheCompany'M-ug...*establishesprovisionswhereappropriateonthebasisofa
expected to be paid to the tax authorities'

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 'lr: '

their carrying amounts in the financial statements' Deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises :;'--

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the i:--:

transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss' Deferred tax is determined using t;r -''

have been enacted at th;;.p"dg pJrioa end date and are expected to apply when the related deterr<': :'

is realized or the defer-red income tax liability is settled'

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit ri il) b' ' '

against which the temporary differences can be utilized'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
against current tax liabilities and

same taxation authoritY.

are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tan

when the deferred tax assets ind-liabilities relate to income taxes levied

2.11 EmPloYee Benefits
The.Companyhasbothdefinedbenefitanddefinedcontributionplans.

a) Defined Contribution Plan
A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Companl

contributions into u't"puiute entity. The Comiany has no legal or constructive obligations to

contributions. The contributions are recognized as employee benef,rt expense when they are due'

The company contributes l5% on gross emoluments of employee to Employee Provident Func ::'

3% on gross emoluments of employee to Employee Trust Fund (ETF)'

b) Defined benefit plan ,-.- :^ .L^ --^^^6+ .,-r,,o ^r rhe
The company oUtigation in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value.of .the 

detlne: :'-"

obligation at the en=i of the reporting period. The detlned benefits obligation is calculated b} i::':'- -'
actuaries using the ;rojected unit ciedit method. The present value of the defined benefits t''r "'
determinedbydiscountingtheestimatedfuturebeneitthatemployeehaveearnedinretun.
services in the current and prior period'

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments. and changes in actuarial assunl:: -' -

charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive intome in the period in which they arise

The company will re-measure the define benefit obligation when the amounts recognized in:ht'-'-'
statements will ditfer materially from the amount that would be determine at the end of the rep": - 

= 
: ' 

-

Past service costs are ,.aognir.a immediately in the statement of comprehensive income'

The retirement benefits obligation is not externally funded'
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c) Short-term employee benefit
Short-term employee benefits obligations are measured on an undiscounted amount expected to be paid for
related services provided by the employee.

4

2.18 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions for operating expenses are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from
the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present
obligation.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources is remote.

2.19 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the subsidized value received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for sales
of goods, stated net of Value Added Taxes (VAT) and Nation Building Tax (NBT). The Company recognizes
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Company.

The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria set out below to each identifiable major rypes of services
rendered.

a) Performanceobligationsand revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with acustomer.TheCompany

recognizes revenuewhen ittransferscontrolovera good orserviceto a contract.

Thefollowingtableprovidesinformation about the nature and timing of the satisfactionof

performance obligations in contracts with'customers, including significant paymentterms, and the

related revenue recognition po licies.

Typeof prod uct/se rvice
Nature a nd timing of satisfaction of
performance

Revenue recognition policies obligations,including
significant paymentterms

Sale of goods & services The Company operates in

different divisions and engaged in

varieties of sale of goods under
each divisio ns/cl usters.

The revenue is recognized based on the
identified performance obligation. The

transaction price is determined taking into account

of variable considerations. The transaction price is
allocated to performance obligations
recognizedthe revenueeitheroverthe time of the
contractor point intime upon analysisof each sale

of goods under separate divisions.

Distributors and dealer
volume rebates

Distributors and dealers are

entitled to volume rebates are

given based on yearly and daily

sales and quantity over different
slabs

The Company estimate the amount of variable
consideration to which it expects to be

entitled. Giving consideration to the risk of
revenue reversal in making the estimate for
volume rebates.
The transaction price under revenue is adjusted
for the provision of volume rebates are
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Interest Income
lnterest income is recognized using the effective interest method'

Rent Income
Rent income is recognized on an accrual basis over the term oflease.

Gain and Losses on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying &filt.u-i :- -

recognized in the staterrent of comprehensive income.

Other Income
Other income is recognized on an accrual basis'

2.20 Expenses
Alf expenditure incurred in the running of the operation has been charged to income in arriving at the proft fur

the reporting period.

2.21 Events Occurring after the Reporting Period
All material everits after the reporting period have been considered and where appropriate adjustrnerrc w

disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the financial statements.

11) Commitments
All material commitments at the reporting period end have been identified and disclosed in the note:

financial statements.

2,23 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Wlen preparing the financial statements. management undertakes a number of judgmentS. esi i-:l: ---
assumptions about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses'

Z,Z3.t The following are significant judgments in applying the accounting policies that have mos: ! :- ' :r--
effect on the financial statements.

(a) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assesi:-:-:

probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be ui, '1.:

2.23.2 lnformation about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect o^ '::::- -:-

and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below:

(a) Useful life time of Depreciable Assets

\otes fo the Finenciel Statements Continued

b)

c)

d)

e)

as revenue.

lssue of free goods The company offers free goods

to their dealers as a promotion.
The free goods granted to customer is a

material right of the customer and is aocrilrta
as a separate performance obligation.
The revenue is allocated for the perforrn:rm!
obligation on their relative stand alone sef,t:
price and the revenue is recognized at the
point in time when the performance obligatin
is mat.
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I

Management reviews its estimate of the useful life time of depreciable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected economic utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.

(tr) Defined benefit plan

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligations depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions are used in
determining the net cost and obligation for defined benefit plan including the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of defined benefits obligation.

NEW ACCOT]}ITING STANDARD AMENDMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT
THE REPORTING DATE

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued the following new Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard Amendments u'hich will become applicable for financial periods beginning on or after 01st April
2020 or at a later date. Accordingly, these Amendments have not been applied in preparing these Financial
Statements.

New or omended
stondards

Summory of the requirement Possible impoct on Consolidoted
F

srFRS 3

Definition of o Business

STFRS 3 helps entities to determine
whether an ocquired set of octivities and
ossets is o business or not. These

amendments clorify the minimum

requirements for o business, remove the
ossessment of whether market
porticipants ore capable of replocing any
missing elements, add guidonce to help
entities ossess whether an ocquired
process

ls substontive, norrow the definition of o
business and of outputs, ond introduce on

optional foir volue concentrotion test.

where this enhonces the
relevonce or foithful

Representotion of the Finonciol
Stotements.

LKAS 7 ond LKAS I
Definition of Materiol

Ame nd me nts to LKAS 7 ond LKAS 8 on
"Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimotes ond Errors" to olign
the definition of "moteriol" ocross the
stondords ond to clorify certoin ospects of
the term "definition". The new definition
stotes thot. "informotion" is moterial if
omitting , misstating



or obscuring it could reasonobly be

expected to influence decision thot the

primory users of generol PurPose
Finonciol Stotements make on the bosis of
those Finonciol Stotements, which provide

finonciol informotion about o specific

reporting entitY.

Amendments to
References to
Conceptuol Fromework
in STFRS Stondards

Conceptual Fromework which will be used

in Stondord setting decisions with
immediote effect. Key chonges include;

o lncreosing the prominence of
stewdrdshiP in the obiective of

finonciol rePorting

o Reinstating prudence os a

com pone nt of ne utro I itY

o Det'ining o reporting entity, which

moy be o identitY, or a Portion of
on entity

o Revising the definitions of an

asset ond o liabilitY

o Removing the ProbobilitY
threshold for recognition ond

odding guidonce on de-

recognition

o Adding guidonce on different
me osure me nts bosis, a n d

o Stoting thot profit or loss is the

p ri m o ry Pe rform o nce i nd i cotor
ond thot, in PrinciPol, income ond

expenses in other comPrehensive

income should be recYcled where

this enhonces the relevonce or

foithful representotion of the

Financiol Statements.

CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH 2023

Ll^+^- +^ +h^ f,:---^i.l qfofamanfc .-nnfinrred
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED (Expressedn srrrazl'az napees/

NOTES I'O'tHE FINANCIAL STATENIENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCII 2023 2022

Revenue

Sale ofFertilizer 536,1t2,27t 1,209,392,948
536,112,271 1,209,392,948

Cost of Sales

Purchases

Direct Expenses

Cost of Production
Finished Goods as at 0l April
Finished Goods as at 3l March

4.1

4.2

(300,8s4,82s) 4s4,904,491
808.02r.474 119.868.039

507,166,649 574,772,530
ts2,6tt,s36 446,784,423

(334.937.180) 052.611.s36)
324,8,11,005 868,945,417

1.1 Purchases
Fertilizer Import Bills
Insurance

Duty and Duty Surcharge
Port and Airport Development Tax
Miscellaneous (Sri Lanka Port Authority)
Discharging Expenses
Landing Charges

Stevedoring Charges

Sampling Charges

Transport and Ilandling Charges

Letter ol Credit Charges

Bank Charges

Packing Materials
Detention Charges

Local Agency Commission

Exchange (Gain) / Loss

Unrealized Exchange Gain/Loss
Subsidy Claimed

474,086,0-s6 
^Orr,1it,,;Z?

- 5,420.00
14,74s,353 340,636,8r8
4,504,554 '.756,160

1,920,270 504,723
28,2r5,890 7,888,656

20t,345,473 61,518,177

\,696,692 1 ,534,718
329,604,40t 50,7 6t,123

732,188 23,545,759
3,214,442 ss,652,462

320,622,534 25,416,225

4,s41,392 229,641
1,741 ,590 4,138,932

(3,8s6) (2s,458.3 l3)
- 821,850,954

(1,687,821,803) (s,s27,r 16,349)
(300,854,825) 454

4.2 Dircct Ex
Mixing Charges

Handling Charges

Labour Charges
Transport Charges to District Fertilizer Stores

Fertilizer Stock Adjestrnent

30,810
34,704,215

9,072,229
763,314,221

900,000

799,821
36,922,32s

5,806,640
105,104,697
(28.76s,444)

808,021,474 r 19,868,039

Other Opcrating Income
lncome From Panalty Import/Local
Liquidated Damages Income

Circuit Bungalow Income - Polonnaruwa

Dispatch Income

Overage Premium
Land Compensation

Sales of Polythene and WPP Bags

Non Refundable Tender Deposit Income

Rent lncome

Profit / (Loss) on Disposal ofProperty, Planl and Equipment / Scraps

Earnings from Transport
Claim against Performance bond

Laboratory Testing lncome

Other Income

Eaming from Fanns

t,zqs,iss

148,400
934,500

15,750
(14,62s)

166,224

riiti #p ; 7, $5 i,0,9.,6:

368,28s

346,550
4 1,875,389

1,489,545
14,381,520

2,921,042
32,478,550

333,140
838,500
25,000
27,248
29,250

490,000
156,708

9,166,597
25.000

Figures in brsckets indicates deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

52,651,785 10,r,58J,039
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NO'IES TO THT] FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 N{ARCH 2023 2022

Administrative Expenses
Directors' Remuneration
Secretary Fees

Salaries - Executive
Salaries - Non Exec'trtive

Overtime
Travelling and Subsistence

Employees' Provident Fund

Employees'Trust Fund
Fuel Allowance for Managers

Tea and Dust Allorvance

Annual Bonus
Medical lrave Payment

Employees on Contract Basis
Training and Scholarships
Weekend and Other Allowances

Employee Compensation
Medical Expenses

Clothing and Medical Allowance
Mdical Irsurance
Other Allos'ances

StaffTransport
Annual lncentive

Staffwelfare
Entertainment
Electriciq'
Telephone-Fax-E-mail and Intemet Charges

Fire Insurance

License and Insurance

Cash in Transit and Cash in Safe Insurance

Postage

Printing and Stationery
Periodicals and Books

O{fi ce Equipment Maintenance
Office Expenses

Vehicle Running Expenses

Vehicle Ir{aintenance

Water Bill
kgal Fees

Securitl' Charges

Lab/Equipment Maintenance
Plant. Machinery and Equipment Maintenance
Building Maintenance
Furniture and Fittings Maintenance
Public Notice Charges

Road Development Expenses

Computer and Accessories Maintenance
Rent

Expenses for Temporary Storage

Charitl'and Donation
Depreciation
Amortization of Intangible Assets

Audit Fees

Balance C / F

2,492,393 2,236,067
100,000 130,000

52,545,335 48,186,498
164,712,547 159,056,380
32,308,942 29,411,280
2,434,538 1,211,534

28,239,973 27,387,911
s,647,995 5,963,616
9,038,883 8,725,879
'1,174,963 6,39t,397
6,731,667 4,839,300

13,272,894 15,399,047
433,000 1,502,218
300,530 507,300

1,464,258 885,762
- 5,547

2,4t2 12,742

4,006,29s 4,333,432
4,421,6s8 7,'789,823
799,817 6 r 9,300

1,280,749 1,067,998

1,731,256 48,431,198
2,'7s3,360 4,325,'131

582,382 23'7,284
5,674,769 4;706,082

10,92'7,082 10,001,240
272,41t 573,900
388,482 440,157
13,432 47,054

785,556 826,120
6,639,049 4,591.300

103,250 52,060
584,146 628,901

1,579,771 1,287,626

27,109,3s0 5,842.163
11,923,063 5,95s,8s0
3,0'79,483 t,746.914
1,376,841 3,401,19r

34,106,'773 24,160,134
234,375 417.450

1,1'10,924 939,232
4,728,087 5,3'79,194

I 5 1,488 14,295
2,0'76,9s? 3,r43,036

- 83,460
3,647,779 3,804,933
1,851,917 2,55s,1',76

- 700

1,070 l 1,015

40,7'72,701 41,088,023
4,582,159 4,s82,1s9
950,000 9s0,000

507,806,754 505,886,637

Figures in brackets indicates deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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Balance B / F
Non Audit Fees

Audit Related Fees.

Consultancy Fees

Work Shop Tools Expenditure
Sanitary Facilities
Vehicle Hiring Charges

Other Equipment Maintenance
Provision for Retirement Benefit obligation
Bank Charges

Insurance Claim
Sports Equipment Maintenance
(Over) / Under Provision ofRecurrent Expenses

Circuit Bungalow Expenses

Gardening and Landscaping Expenses

Natural Disaster Expenses

Laboratory Building Maintenance
Laboratory Expenses

I-aboratory Equipment Insurance

Other Expenses

Registration Fees

Promotional Erpcnses
Advertising and Publicitl Notices
Written-off of Bad Debts

Sales Commission

507,806,754
t64,9ts

56,87 5

229,950
I 99,384

5,40',7,289
24,'190

160,694
19,005,034
2,'.ts9,6-5s

1,066,112
394,4'74

'1,466,397

32,27 s

I 15,398

s,tzt,iso
234,954

505,886,637
90,000
52,330

404,073
29,740

4,785,426
1,081,206

626,607
3,418,199

704,401
'773,576

5,650
t,s63,747

321,998
'7,847,058

80,000
6,170

213,602
I 3,857

5.7 l 0,823
550,252,130 531,6rs,098

1, 1 1s,789
7,8s1,176

2s.524

77.085

%.ioo
g,gg2,4gg l5 t,48s

Nct Finance Income
Intercst Income
Interest on Fixed Deposits and REPO Investments

Interest from Ernployees l-oans

lntcrcst Expcnses
lnlercsl on Overdra fts/Loans

624,950,t55 180,425,396
1,634,058 1,569,619

626,584,214 181,995,015

(218,301,976) (27,911,393)
(218,301,976) (27,911,393)
4082U,237 154,083,622

Figures in brackets indicates deductions.

Notes to thc Financial Statemcnts Continucd

z
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCII 2023 2022
Note

Income Tax Expenses
Current Year
Under Provision in Previous Years
Deferred Tax Charge

9.1

23

39,262,196 2t,019,056

(t7,102,;62) (37,246,367)

9.1 Rcconciliation betrveen cu rrent tax expenses/(reversal) and

Accounting Profit / (Loss) Bcfore Taxation
Non-Business Income
Aggregate of Disallowable Expenses

Aggregate ol Allon able Claims
Tax Adjusted Profit
Income from Other Sources

Total Statutory Incomc
Loss Clairned previous Year
Loss Claimed during the Year
Taxable Income
Tax Chargcd at Statutor), Tar Rate of 24%o & 30Yo

Current Tax Provision
Currcnt Tax on Ordinart, Activities for thc Ycar

the accounting profi t/(loss[

112,960,670 65,349,609
(626,584,214) ( r 81,995,015)

64,943,346 49,363,928
(32,488,475) (27,133,136)

(481,168,673) (94,415,615)

626,584,214 181,995,015
145,415,540 g7 ,579,400

r 4s,4 r 5,;40 87,s79,;oo
39.262,196 21,019,056
39,262,196 2l,019,056

l0 Basic Earnings pcr Share / Dividends per Share
10.1 Basic Earnings Pcr Share (EPS) 2023 2022

Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary Sharehotders (Rs.)

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares in Issue

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit
weighted average number ofordinary shares in issue during the year.

2.40 1.62

for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the

120,800,836

50,245,608

8 t ,575.919

5 0.245,608

10.2 Dividends Pcr Share (DI'S)

2023 2022

Dividends Paid / Proposed

Number of Ordinarv Shares

Dividend per Share

Figures in brackets indicates deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

18,120,125

50,24s,608

0.36

12.236.388

50,245,608

0.37

(7,840,166) (16,227,311)

39,262,196 2l,019,056

ri-t:
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il Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost 0l April2022 Additions Disposal 31 l\Iarch 2023

Land

Biological Assets

Buildings
Container Office
Plant and Machinery
Motor Vehicle
Fumiture and Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Other
Total

I,868,965,707
2,086,200

893,925,8 I 8

6,046,500

21,648,129
49, I 95,850

23,660,308

14,946,349

26,s86,s44
19,472,725

1,868,965,707

2,086,200
893,925,8 I 8

6,046,500

21,775,989
49, I 95,850

23,660,308

16,082,753

27,726,254

2s,063,928

nt.i-ao

1,136,404

1,139,710

5,591,203
2,926,534,130 7,995,177 2,934,529,307

Depreciation ol April 2022 CharBe{or the
Disposal 31 March 2023

Buildings
Container Office
PIant and Machinery
Motor Vehicle
Fumiture and Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Other

167,379,999 28,265,820
1,006,928 944,700

14,010,778 2,763,292
48,599,438 125,000

19s,645,81 8

1,951,628

t6,774,070
48,724,438

21,820,998
13,690,787

2s,843,876

20,552,894
I 1,861,199

1,268,104

1,829,588

21,845,025 3,998,851

8,624,497 't,577,346 - 10.201.843
293.880,758 40,712,701 334,653,459

\\'ritten Do$'n value 2023 2022

Land

Biological Assets

Buildings
Container OIIlce
Planl and Machinery
Motor Vehicle
Furniture and Fittrngs

Office Equipment

Compuler Equipment
Other

1,868,96s,707 1,868,965,707

2,086,200

753,1s7,261
2,s32,862
8,409,363

721,413
4,871,376

3.81 1.662

9,549,196

2,086,200

698,279,999

4,091,872
5,001,91 8

471,413

1 ,839,3 I 0

2,391,966

1,882,378

14,862,084 I1,885,066

2,599,875,848 2,665,990,'105

Land and buildings of some of the district fertilizer stores located at Hingurakgoda, Akuressa, Matale, Kurunagala, Nuweraeliya
Kegalle, Madhavachchiya, Kuruvita, Dodangoda, Mathugama, Koggala and Weeravila used for operational activities are not recognized
under property, plant and equipment as ornerships or leasing anangements of such assets are not clear. Cunently, the company is in
process ofmaking contractual arrangements to transfer the legal title of such assets.

t2
Capital Work-in-Progress 0l Aorit 2022 Expenditure

' lncurred
Amount

Capitalized
31 NIarch 2023

Kataragama Bungalow
676,729 676,729

The Board has decided to temporarily suspend the construction ofbungalow in Kataragama at the board meeting held on 26 February
20t6.

Figures in brackets indicat6 deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

676,730 67d.729

ffi:
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CEYLOn' FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED (exloressea ia .ti; rar*ar nupecs)

NOTES TO TI{E FINAN.CIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

l3 Intangible Assets
0l April 2022 Additions 31 March 2023

Cost (Disposals)

22,910,795 - 22,910,795

Amortization 0I April 2022 Charge
for the Year

3l ]\{arch 2023

Computer Software l7 ,932,157 4,582,159 22,514,316

17,932,157 4,582,159 22,514,316

\\'ritten Dou'n Yelue 2023 2022

Computer Software 396,479 9,560,797

t4 Inventories 2023 2022

Direc{ Fertilizer 'l

Consumables
Packing Material

kovision for Impairment

334,937,180
15,954,382

8,369,s02

152,611,536
11,583,422

8,557,69 l
359,261,064
(11,767 ,468)

172,752,649
(77 ,767,468)

28 I,493,596 91,985, I 8 I

Tredc end Othcr Rcceivables
Trade Receivables

Provision for Impairment

Other Receivables

l5
1.066,771,612 1,s30,059,0il
(144,67r,108) (144,671,108)

15. I

r 5.2
922,100,504 1,385,387,903

23,209,s14,908 27,068,543,924
24,131,615,412 28,453,931,827

l5.l Trade Rcceivables
Govemment Departments
f)ebtors on Loan

Agrarian Service Centers

Authorized Dealers

Distributors

The ageing ofthe trade receivables are as follows
Up to 3 Months
3 to 12 Months
More than One (l ) Year
Over Ten ( I 0) Years

Trade receivables have been reviewed for impairment. Certain trade receivables are found
made on the basis as stated in note 2. I L

I,067,671,612 1,s30,0s9,0u

to be impaired and provision for impairment has been

87,5 r 8,02 l

923,464,231

12,877,083

87,348,521

1,385,01 1,522

12,892,083

42,912,277 44,806,88s
1,066,771,612 1.530.059.01t

4,000,204

917 ,169,359
86,502.049

25,806,580

868,09 I ,40s
549,558,9'7'7

86.602.049

15.2 0thcr Reccivables
General Trcasury - Subsidies
Road Developrnent Authority
Others
Deposits

Advance and Prepaid Expenscs

Cash Sortage - Stock Ol.ficer
Unrealized Stock veriance

23,016,099,s44
I 2,600,000

t02,622,481
1,696,61 r

14,452,844

2.043,428

26,913,536,703

I 2,600,000
112,649,404

1,097,611
26,163,097

55,928
2.441.181

(Note I)

23,209,sr,1,90ri 27,068,5,13,924

Note I: Duringthe financial year70l5l16, in the Pothuwil Stores an aggregate amount ofRs. 9,984,313.211- had been identified as stock shortage
and adjustment also incorporated in the llnancial statements net of recoveries. However, in the internal investigation carried out by the Internal

Audit Departmerlt, subsequent to the financial year, corresponding to stock movement in the same store, it was evidenced to suspect that certain

fraudulent transactions had been occurred even before the financial year 20 I 5 / I 6. Consequently, it rvas identified an aggregated amount of Rs.

7 ,934,279/- has been subjected to nrisappropriation of inventories which results stock shortage / loss to the company as of the date of signing of
these financial statements. During the year 201'1 I 18, the company has taken steps to filed a civil case in the District Court ofGampaha for the total
f osses incrrrred to the comnanv and the Government amolrntins to Rs 14 796 2151-

Figures in brackets indicates dcductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED (Exzressed m ^!'ri raz*ar Razees)

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEI\{ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDI,D 3I MARCH 2023 2022

l6 Employees Loans and Advances
Festival Advances

Motor Cycle Loans

Personal Loans

506,250
197,t26

468,750
402,959

40.864.400 34.598.81 I
41,567,777 35,470,521

Personal loans are mgasured at fair value using the interest rate of 4.2% instructed by the Government circular under procurement guidelines

para XXIV subsection 3.8 since the company is covered under establishment code, the rate at which the loans have been granted is considered

as the market interest rate for employees working at government organizations.

l7 Investments in Government Sccurities
2023 2022

Treasury Bills 958,141,229 807,101,718

The investrnents in treasury bills are the investments made by the company from the additional funds and certain claims and compensation

received to the company. Though, thc management maintained these investments separately in the books ofaccounts. none ofthe investments

are considered to be "Planned Assets" for any Retirement Benefits commitments.

The carrying amount of the investments have been measured at amortized cost in compliance with the SLFRS 9 using Effective Interest Rate

(ErR).

l8 Investme nts in Fixed Deposits
20222023

Fixed Deposits 2.925,863.811 2,523,866,395

l8.t The company has cntered into a Private Public Partnership agreement for purchasing of liquid fertilizer with Baylawn (Pvt) Ltd and, as

per the agreement a credit facility, amounting to Rs. I l2 Mn have been arranged to Baylawn (Pvt) Ltd by pledging a company's Fixed

Deposit No. 00460010010802 / Rs. 240Mn. The outstanding balance of the facility as at 03rd March 2018 u,as 75.98 Mn.

18.2 Thc carrying amount of the fixcd deposits have been measured at amortized cost in compliance with the LKAS 39 using Effective Intercst

Rate (ElR). Further. thesc investnrents arc maintaining for shorl term liquidity requirements of the company rather bcing held for their

maturity-, therefore, Ihese investments have been considered as "Loans and lteceivables" financial assets in the financial statemcnts.

18.3 Fixed deposits No. 17717 & 4087, total amounting to Rs. 228.80 Mn at the reporting date have been pledged against the Overdrafl

Facility of Rs. 206 Mn.

18.4 Fixed deposits No.75984713,7676752|,',|676753'1,76767440,81281476,17717and 40807, toral amounting to Rs. 1104.1 Mn as ar the

reporting date have been pledged against the LC Bond Facility

l9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2023 2022

Favorable Balances
Cash in Hand
Currenl Accounts
Saving / Call Deposits (Ref: Note 18.4)

Unfavorable Balances
Bank Balance Overdraft

(0) 233,664
426,002,018 134,2't6,6'75

73,183,010 t63,194,626
499,185,028 297 ,704,965

20

21

Stated Capital
Number of Ordinary Shares Issued and Fully Paid

Ordinary Share Capital Issued and Fully Paid

50,245,608 50,245,608

502,4s6,080 s02,4s6,080

Revaluation Resen'e

The revaluation reserve relates (o the revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment, once the respective revalued assets have been

disposed, po(ion ofrevalued surplus is transferred to retained eamings.

22 Retirement Benefi ts Obligation
Notc 2023 2$22

Balance as at 0l April
Expenses Recognized in Profit or Loss

I'ayments Made During the Year
Acturial Gain Losson obligalion

Balancc as at 31 Nlarch

73,914,153 79,731,435
l 9,00s,034

(13.0s0.4r8) (e.23s.432)

79,868,769 73,914,153

22.1

11,28,1,313 11,28,1,313

22,1 Expcnse Recognized in Comprehensivc Incomc
Currenl Service Cosl
Interest Charge fbr the Year

Figurcs in brackcts indicatcs deductions.

Notcs to the Financial Statements Continucd

3,3 1 t,169 3,31 1,169

7,973,144 7 ,973,144
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CEYLON FERTILIZER COMPANY

NOTES TO TTIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH

22.2 Retirement Benelits Obligation Contd...
These assumptions developed by independent actuarial consultant are based on

measure the retirement benefits obligation.

The principal assumptions used are as lollows.

Distount Rate [%]
Future Salary Increases IRs.] - Executive

Future Salary Increases IRs.] - Other
StaffTumover Factor [%]
Retirement Age [Yrs]

the management's best estimates of variables used to

8.5

Fixed Rate 1.5%

0-2
60

10.5

1,150

240
t-2

60

Actuarial Garn / Loss does not arise as the company has not done an actuarial valuation ofthe gratuity liabilities for the previous year.

In addition to the above, demographic assumptions such as mortality, withdrawal and disability are considered for the actuarial valuation.

The 2007 mortality table issued by the Londorr Institute ofActuaries (A 196'7170 mortality table) has also been used in the valuation.

The sensitivity ofthe present value ofretirenrcnt benefits obligation (gratuity provision at the repo(ing date) to changes in the weighted

orinciole assumotions bv 1% are:

The Principlc Assurnptions Sensitivity [7o]
lncrcase in 17o Decrcase 1olo

Gratui(v Liability Change
Increase in l7o Dccrcase l7o

Salary Escalation Rate [%]
Discount Rate [%]

5.97
(6.s4)

(s.'72)

6.96
84,638,098
74,646,294

15,296,789
85,429,294

23 Deferred Taxation
2023 2022

Balance as at 0l April
(Originated) / Reverse for the Year Recognised

Deferred Tax Expenses Recognised in OCI for
Balance as at 3l March

100,894,788 139,082,220
(4'1,102,362) (37,246,367)in Profit or Loss

Revaluation Surplu 6l .471 .l 08 I.065
23.1 lt

23.1 The Anall'sis of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Dcfcrred Tax Liability
Frorn Accelerating Depreciation
From Revaluation Surpluses

Deferred Tax Assets

From Retirement Benefi ts Obligation
Delerred Tax Assets Ansing accounting provrsrons

140,667,706

65,288,031

168,202,s20
3,816,923

205,955,737 172,019,413

(21,960,631) (17,739,39'7)
(66,73t,s73) (s3,38s,2s8)
(90,692,203) (71,12{.6s5)
t t5,263,s33 100,8

The detbrred tax liability on revaluation garn for non-depreciable assets (Land use for administrative purposes) should represent the

current obligation to pay taxes in the luture rvhen the asset is sold. Horvever, since there is no present obligation to sell the land, there is

no present obligation to pay taxes. Therefbre, no deferred tax liability recognised for the revalued lands.

24 l'rade and Other Payablcs
20222023

Trade Payables

Other Payables

Payable to Organic Supplier (Coverntnent Funded)

24.1

391,831,919 2,ss9.799,320
1,768,941t,802 188.938,791

I 55.1 98.022 214.802.469
2.315.977.743 2.963.540.s81

24.1 OtherPayables
Sundry Creditors
Retention Money
General Treasury

VATiPAYE/Stamp Duty
Others

Payable to SLPA

Figures in brackels indicates deductions.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

527 
"600,272

1322,946
I,238,049;720

(3s0,437)
2,302,408

I 6.892

173"051,227

478,633
14.962,309

(14t,239)
570,968

16,892

1.768.9.1t.802 I 88.938.791

ffi
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cEYLOlr- FERTILIZER COMPANY LIMITED (rxzreirearirs);r-autazralees)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
Note

2023 2022

25 Intcrest Bcaring Borrowings Short Term
People's Bank
Balance as at 0l April
Obtained During the Year
Paid During the Year
Balance as at 31 March

Non-current Portion

Current Portion

n.415s44J46 25220.083J47

These loans are arranged b1, the treasury and may be settled during the next year as fund are available.

Dcposits rnd Adv.nccs Rcccivcd
Refundable Performance Bond
Staffsecurity De$osis
Refundable Deposis
Receipt in Advance
Deferred Interest Income

Sundry Salary Deduction
Excess on Sales

26

25,220,083,747
13,574.325,625

(16.378.465.226)

19,657,929,071
8,39 r,084,309

(2,828,929,633)
22,415,944,146 25,220,083,747

22,206,902,897
209,041,249

13,451,229,'n2
I 1,768,854,035

3,874,499
3,948,377
3,798,700
5,602,7s3
2,513,770

(0)

7 47,254

3,874,499
3,959,993
3,292,950
6,056,227

19.t66
'146,679

20,485,353 1'.7,919,574

the Year
: Recoverablc

Incomc Tar Pavables
Balance as at 0l .{pril
Pal'nrenls N4ade for Previous Year
Pror,ision lor the Current Year
Sell'Assessment Pavments Made During t

Withholding Tax (WHT) and notional tax
Balance as at 3l Nlarch

at

2 t,019,056

39,262,196

fl 3. r 83.828)

4,345,255
(4,345,255)
21,01 9,056

28 Accrued Expenses and Provisions
Accrued Expenses 24.766.778 63,7 41.302

24.166-1711 63.141.302

29

30

Capital and Other Commitments
No capital commitments r.vere engaged during the year and outstanding as of the reporting date.

Events Occurring aftcr Rcporting Period
There rvere no events occurred, rvhich required adjustments or disclosure in these financial statements between the 31 March reporting
date and tlrc datc ofauthorization.

Contingent liabilities
The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims arising in the ordinary course of business.'Unless recognized as a

provision QrJote 29), management considers these claims to be unjustified and possibility of an outflow of resources for their settlement
is remote. This evaluation is consistent with legal advices of the company's legal division. Accordingly, no provision has been made for
such legal claims.

l{orvever, a court case is pending as at the reporting date filed againsl the company by D.S.S Construction in relation to the construction

bill outstanding net of tenders deposit recovered amounting to Rs. 7,243,400/- Ibr the Road Construction carried out in the Head Offlce

prcmise. Since, the legal proceeding is in the preliminary stage provision for legal claims or the losses could not be ascertained and no

adjustments relaling to the transactions have been recognized in the financial staternents.

3l

Figurcs in brackets indicates deductions,

Notes to the Financial Statenrents Continued
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NOTES TO THf FINANCIAL STATEN{ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH

33 Financial Instruments and Risk Management
The accounting classification ofeach category olfinancial instruments and their carrying amounts repo(ed in the statement offinancial position are
stated belos.

The Carr-r'ing Values of Financial Assets end Liabilities.
{

20222023
The carrying amount ofthe financial assets and liabilities reported in the statement offinancial position
are as follows,
FI\ANCIALASSETS

Financial .{ssets at .{mortized Costs

Treasury Bills
lnvestmen6 arc stated at amortized cost using the effective interest

Trade and Other Receivables
Ernployees lnans and Advances
Investments in Govemment Securities
Investments in Fixed Deposits
Cash anil Cash Equivalents

Financial assets at amotized cost are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method
TOTAL FINANCIALASSETS

958,t41,229 807,101,71 8

24,276,286,520 28,598,60293s

method

499.185.028 297.704.96s
28,701,044,365 32,262,746,s34

41,567 ,777
958,141,229

2,925,863,811

3s,410,s21
807, I 01,71 8

2.523.866.39s

FI\.{\CIAI- LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities measurcd at Amortized Costs

Interest Bearing Borrorvings
Trade and Other Payables

Deposits and Advances Received
Bank Overdrafls

Total Financial Liabilitics
The financial liabilities are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method

22,415,944,t46
2,315,977,743

20,485,353

25,220,083,747
2,963,s40,s81

t7,949,sl4
--l

24,752,407,243 28,20r,573,841

Risk Nlanagcmcnt

A. l'inancial Risk Factors

The company has exposure to the following risks from its use offinancial instrulnents.

01 Credit Risk
02 Liquidiry Risk
03 Market Risk ( Currency Risk and Interest Rate Risk)

The tinancial instruments ofthe company comprise ofinvestments in term deposits and govemment securities, bank deposits, and short-term bank
borrorvings. The company also has trade receivables and payables and subsidy receivables arising from its core business activities. The rrain purpbse

ofinvestment in short- term deposits and short-tenn borrowings are to raise and maintain liquidity for the operations.

0l Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk offinancial loss to the company ifcounterparty fails to meet its conlractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally frorn
deposits held with banks and financial institutions, cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash in hand), receivables from customers and subsidy
receivables from the Treasury.

The maximum risk exposures offinancial assets that are subject to credit risk are equal to their carrying amounts.

Follou'ing table depicts the maximum risk exposure offinancial assets reported at the reporting date.

Risk Exposure to Financial
2023 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments in Govemment Securities
Investments in Government Securities
Trade and Other Receivables

499,1 85,028 297 .471 ,301
958,141,229 807,101,718

2,92s,863,811 2,523,866,39s
24,t31.615.412 28.4s3.931.827

Figures in brackets iildicste deductions

Not6 to the Financi^l StatemeDts rontinued
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEN,IENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I MARCH

B. Financial Risk Factors Contd...

Trade and Other Receivables
The company trades mainly with agrarian service centers, govemment institutions and authorized dealers. The management assesses the credit
quality ofauthorized dealers based on the past experience and other factors such as financial guarantees from them. In addition, outstanding

balances ar& monitored on an ongoing basis by the management and the Board.

The age analysrs ofthe company's trade receivables is given in Note 15.

The company establishes policy for provision for impairment (Refer note 2.7 to the financial statements) that represents the estimate of incuned

losses in respect of trade receivables. According to the imparrment policy established, customers are reviewed individually to measure the

impairmentloss. Pleaserelernotel5tothefinancial statementsrelatingtotradereceivablesanddetailsofprovisionforimpairmentlosses.

Subsidy Receivables
The receivables represent fertilizer subsidies to be received from the Treasury to compensate for import costs already incurred. The subsidy

receivable is expected to recover within a period of 180-270 days. The company's exposure to credit risk arises from default in meeting

contractual obligation ofthe Treasury, with a maximurr exposure equal to the carrying amount ofthe receivables.

Other Financial Assets
Credit risk arising from other financial assets ol the company comprises deposits held with banks and financial institutrons, cash and cash

equivalents. The company's exposure to credit risk arises from default in meeting contractual obligation ofcontractual parties, with a maximum

exposure cqual to the carrying amount of these financial instruments. The company manages its credit risks with regard to these financial

instruments by mainly placing its fund ivith state financial institutions and other govemment institutions.

02 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possrble, that it will always have sufficient cash to meet its liabilities when due, under both nonnal and

unexpected conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses.

Conrpany monitor financial assets and liabilities and prepares variance report quarterly by comparing with the annual budget. The management

monitors the daill' bank balances and liquidity requirements to ensure that the company has sulTicient cash to meet operational needs.

The follorving table depicts the company's financial assets and liabilities maturity analysis as at 31 March 2021 based on the remaining period

at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

florvs.

Financial Assets and Liabilities Carrying Amount 6 Month or Less 6-12
N{onths

Morc than
I Years

Financial Assets
Investments in Government Securities

lnvestments in Government
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade and Other Receivables

Employees Loans and Advances
Total Undiscountcd l'inancial Asscts

Financial Liabilitics
Interest Bearing Borrorvings

Trade and Other Payables

Deposits and Advances Received
Bank Overdrafts

Total Undiscounted Financial Liabilities

Nct Undiscounted Financial Asscts / (Liabilities)

e58,141.229

2,92s,863,81I 2,595,318,881
499, I 85,028 499,1 85,028

24,131,615,412 24,131.61s,412
41.567 .777 41 .567 .777

958,141,229
330,s44,930

28,556,373,2s7 27,267,687,098 1.288,686,r s9

22,415,914,146
2,315.917,743

20,485,3 53

5,636,893,29s
20,48s,3s3

209,041,249
3,906,516.96

22.206.902-897

21.752.407.243 5,657.378,648 212.947,766 22,206,902,897

3,803.966,015 21,610,308,4s0 1,07s,738,393 (22.206,902,897)

03 l\{arkct Risk ( Currency Risk and Interest Ratc Risk)
Market risk rs the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates which rvill affect the company's income

or the carrying value ofholdings offinancial instruments.

Currency Risk
The company's exposure to currency risk arising from fluctuations in the value ofUS Dollar (USD) against the Sri Lankan Rupee after Central

Bank ofSri Lanka allowed the Sri l.anka Rupees to freely float against USD during the reporting period. The company's f'unctional currencf in

respectofimportslertilizersisUSDhorveversettlelnentsolimpo(saremadethroughrupeeaccounts. revenueisUSDinwhichmostofthe
transactions are dcnominated. Certain bank balances are denominated in USD.

The company has reported foreign exchange losses included in the operating results for the reporting period 2021 is Rs.373,856,9961-.

Interest Rate Risk
The companl,'s exposure to interest risk is the changes in market interest rates relate to the interest bearing borrorvings with a fixed interest rate

Rs 21,077,869/- ofthe cornpany's interest bearing loans and borrowings carried interest at flxed rates. The company has bank balances

including term deposits placed rvith state banks. The companl' monitors interest rate risk by actively rnonitoring interest rate movements.

However. interest are Daid bv Governrrent's treasury.

Figures in brackets indicate deduclions
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NOTES TO THE, FINANCIAL STA'I'I'N'IENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

Related Party Disclosures
The Company's related parties includes Govenrment of Sri Lanka, State-Owned Enterprises, Other Related Entities and key
management personnel.

Transactidns with Key Management Personnel
According to the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards LKAS.24 "Related Party disclosures" Key Management Personnel are those having
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or indirectly. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors and the General Manager have been classified as Key Management Personnel.

Transactions rvith Key Management Personnel are given below. 2023 2022

Remuneration and Other Short - Term Employee Benefits 2,325,374 2,32s,374

Relatcd Party Transactions
Details ofsignificant related party transactions that company carries out are as follows:

Name of thc Rclated Partv Nature of Transactions
Transaction Value Balance (Due

(Rs.) to)/Duc from

Govemment of Sri Lanka

State-Orvned Enterprises

Other Covernment Relatcd Entities

Capital Grants

Subsidies Received out of the claims made

amounts to

Sales of Goods

Recoveries of Trade Reccivables

Short{erm Loans borrolved
Settlements of Loans

Investments In Treasury Bills and Rcpo's
' Proceeds from Maturity of Investmenl

Interest Received

Invcstments In Fixed Deposits
Investment during the year

Interest Received

Call Deposits and Saving Deposits

Current Accounts
Current Accounts - Overdraft

Recoveries of Trade Receivables

1,687,82 1,803

536,112,271

5,088,400

13,574,325,625

(16,3i8,46s,226)

624,950,t55.30

194,'159,402.19

499, l 85,028.39

68,805,790.00

Figures in brackets indicates deductions.


